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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) and its associates (refer Note 4 to the attached
Consolidated Financial Statements), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements™).

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its associates as at March 31, 2025,
and consolidated total comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income),
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Company and its associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of the other auditors as
furnished to us, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows, and changes in equity
of the Company including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
Board of Directors of the Company and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

6. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Company and
of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Company and of its associates to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. The respective Board of Directors of the Company and of its associates are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Company and of its associates.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company and its associates to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

DY

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information or business activities of

the Company and its associates to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For

the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other

auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company included in the Consolidated

11.

Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance of the Company with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

12,

13.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024, were audited by
another firm of chartered accountants under the Act who, vide their report dated September 16, 2024,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Company’s share of profit of Rs. Nil for the year ended
March 31, 2025 as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of two associates whose
financial statements have not been audited by us. The financial statements of these associates are unaudited
and have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements insofar as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates and
our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act including report on Other Information insofar
as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial
statements are not material to the Company.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the financial statements certified by the management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement

14. This report does not contain a statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of ‘the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020’ (“CARO 2020”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act as, in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no qualifications or adverse remarks included in the CARO 2020 reports issued in
respect of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company which is included in these Consolidated
Financial Statements. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, CARO 2020 is
not applicable to any of the other Companies included in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

15. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books for the Company, except that the backup of books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers physically located in
India during the year and the matters stated in paragraph 15(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors of the Company
is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

(f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 15(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 15(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in Annexure A.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact, if any, of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Company — Refer Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.
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iii. During the year ended March 31, 2025, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The managements of the Company have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note 36(vii)(A) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The managements of the Company have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the Notes 36(vii)(B) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries..

(c) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us , nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company have not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of
account. However, at application level in the absence of adequate evidence of necessary controls and
documentation regarding whether audit trail feature is enabled for all relevant transactions, we are
unable to comment on the audit trail feature and at database level audit trail is not enabled of the
aforesaid software. Accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the audit trail had
operated throughout the year or was tampered with, does not arise. Further, the audit trail, has not
been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

16. The Company have paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Divyank Goel
Partner
Membership Number: 513979

UDIN: 25513979 BMUKTZ4403
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements of Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Company”) and its associates, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date. Reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of Section 143 of the Act in respect of the
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is
not applicable to two associates incorporated in India namely Iride Fleet Management Technologies
LLP and Iride Technologies Private Limited, pursuant to MCA notification GSR 583(E) dated 13
June 2017.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Board of Directors of the Company, to whom reporting under clause (i) of sub section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements is applicable, which are Companies incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued
by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud

Or €ITOrT.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

6.

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material
effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company, which are Companies incorporated in India, have, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Divyank Goel
Partner
Membership Number: 513979

UDIN: 25513979BMUKTZ4403
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025
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Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

, As at As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 1,427 1,607 1,610
Right-of-use assets 3(b) 633 139 70
Intangible assets 3(c) 25 41 35
Investments in associates 4 - 40 40
Financial assets

i. Investments 5(a) - - 656
ii. Loans 5(c) - 150 -
iii. Other financial assets 5(e) 55 113 206
Deferred tax assets (net) 6(b) 176 99 95
Total non-current assets 2,316 2,189 2,712
Current assets
Inventories 7 3,600 4,119 6,548
Financial assets
i. Investments 5(a) 292 654 -
ii. Trade receivables 5(b) 4,022 7,037 2,688
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 5(d)() 546 41 55
iv. Bank balance other than iii) above 5(d)(ii) 17 - -
v. Loans 5(c) 2 190 106
vi. Other financial assets 5(e) 90 34 15
Other current assets 8 665 587 1,121
Current tax assets (net) 6(a) 274 215 291
Current assets excluding assets classified as held for distribution 9,508 12,877 10,824
Assets classified as held for sale o{a) 122 - -
Assets classified as held for distribution 9(b) 5,335 - -
Total current assets 14,965 12,877 10,824
Total assets 17,281 15,066 13@26
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10(a) 15 15 15
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 10(b) 7,060 9,269 8,182
Total equity 7,075 9,284 8,197
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 11(a) 31 276 320
ii. Lease liabilities 3(b) 561 179 30
iii. Other financial liabilities 11(c) - 23 -
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 12 123 173 156
Total non-current liabilities 715 651 506




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Balance Sheet
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

N As at As at As at
Farticulaes hotes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings 11(a) 41 1,684 2,735
ii. Lease liabilities 3(b) 85 219 54
iii. Trade payables

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 11(b) 482 574 263

(b) Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 11(b) 2,444 2,206 1,479
iv. Other financial liabilities 11(c) 154 160 143
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 12 83 94 46
Other current liabilities 13 867 194 113
Total current liabilities excluding liabilities relating to assets
held for distribution 4,156 5131 4,833
Liabilities relating to assets classified as held for distribution 14 5,335 - -
Total current liabilities 9,491 5,131 4,833
Total liabilities 10,206 5,782 5,339
Total equity and liabilities 17,281 1@066 13&36

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
The above Consolidated Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016 Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

Divyank Goel Deepak Jain

Partner Chairman and Director Managing Director and CEO
Membership No. 513979 DIN: 00004972 DIN: 00795591

Place: Gurugram Place : Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025



Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 15 31,686 21,439
Other income 16(a) 80 25
Other gains/(losses) — net 16(b) 63 170
Total income 31,829 21,634
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 17(a) 22,356 14,680
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade 467) 550
and finished goods 17(b) 407
Employee benefit expense 18 1,920 1,206
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 237 192
Net impairment losses on financial assets 20 8 4
Other expenses 21 3,045 1,674
Finance costs 22 109 70
Total expenses 27,208 18,046
Profit before share of net profits of associates
accounted for using cost and tax 4,621 3,588
Share of net profits/(loss) of associates accounted for using cost method - -
Profit before tax 4,621 3,588
Income tax expense
- Current tax 23 910 427
- Deferred tax 23 (100) (5)
Total tax expense 810 422
Profit from continuing operations (A) 3,811 3,166
Discontinued operations
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations before tax 28 (1,225) (2,076)
Tax expenses of discontinued operations 23 - -
Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations (B) (1,225) (2,076)
Profit for the year (A+B) 2,586 1,090
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 145 4)
- Income tax relating to these items 23 (23) 1
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (C) 122 (3)

Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B+C) 2,708 1,087




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Other comprehensive income is attributable to:

Continuing operations 67 (19)

Discontinued operations 55 16

Earnings per equity share for profit from continuing

operation[face value of INR 10 each (March 31,

2024: INR 10 each)]

Basic earnings per equity share (in INR) 33(a) 2,576.36 2,110.67

Diluted earnings per equity share (in INR) 33(b) 2,576.36 2,110.67

Earnings per equity share for profit from

discontinued operations[face value of INR 10 each

(March 31, 2024: INR 10 each)]

Basic earnings per equity share (in INR) 33(a) (828.14) (1,384.00)

Diluted earnings per equity share (in INR) 33(b) (828.14) (1,384.00)

Earnings per equity share for profit from continuing

operation and from discontinued operations [face

value of INR 10 each (March 31, 2024: INR 10 each)]

Basic earnings per equity share (in INR) 33(a) 1,748.22 726.67

Diluted earnings per equity share (in INR) 33(b) 1,748.22 726.67

This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
The above Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016 Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

r“l ) XLL Lu\w(\l&‘ .
Divyank Goel Deepak Jain Akshay Kashyap
Partner Chairman and Director Managing Director and CEO
Membership No. 513979 DIN: 00004972 DIN: 00795591
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place : Gurugram

Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025



Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before income tax from
- Continuing operations 4,621 3,588
- Discontinued operations (1,225) (2,076)
Profit before income tax from including discontinued operations 3,396 1,512
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19&28 335 402
Impairment of others non-current assets 5(a) & 28 42 -
Net impairment losses on financial assets 20 & 28 59 16
Finance costs 22 & 28 220 282
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 21 & 28 (58) 8
Net (gain)/loss on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 21 & 28 (13) (139)
Assets written off 22 & 28 124 138
Net (gain)/loss on sale of investments 16(a) & 28 (24) 2
Net (gain)/loss on sale and leaseback 16(b) & 28 - (61)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 16(a) & 28 @3) (1)
Provision for inventory obsolescence 222 -
Interest income on lease receivable 28 (18) 4
Interest income classified as investing cash flows 16(a) & 28 (172 (36)
Net exchange differences (unrealised) (15) 5
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 21 (4,365)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (646) 2,430
(Increase)/Decrease in other financials assets (82) (36)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (150) 534
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 939 1,038
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 44 23
Increase/(Decrease) in employee benefit obligations (48) 65
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 165 82
Cash generated from operations 4,493 1,895
Income tax paid (net) (757) (426)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,736 1,469
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (967) (475)
Payment for purchase of investments - -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 92 109
Proceeds from sale of investments 400 153
Repayment of loans by employees and related parties* 0 16
Advance received for sale of property, plant and equipment 550 -
Investment in bank deposits (11) -
Maturity of bank deposits 33 112
Interest received 16 36
Net cash used in investing activities 113 (ﬂ.
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities (principal) (217) (69)
Buy-back of equity shares (including transaction cost) (740) -
Proceeds from borrowings - -
Repayment of borrowings (1,888) (1,096)
Interest paid (178) (269)

Net cash outflow from financing activities

s;aﬂzg!

(1:434)




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

: For the year ended For the year ended
L L L] ot March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 826 (14)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 41 55
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 867 41
Non-cash financing and investing activities
Acquisition of right-of-use assets 3(b) 691 117
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise the following:
Cash on hand 5(d)() 2 1
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 5(d)(d) 865 40
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows 867 41

* 0 denotes amount which is below rounding off norm adopted by the Company and its associates.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date.

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016 Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private limited

WY o bl

Divyank Goel ' Deepak}Jain

Partner Chairman and Director
Membership No. 513979 DIN: 00004972
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: May 15, 2025 Date: May 15, 2025

Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 00795591

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital
Particulars Notes Amount
As at April 01, 2023 15
Changes in equity share capital 10 (a) -
As at March 31, 2024 15
As at April 01, 2024 15
Changes in equity share capital* 10 (a) (0)
As at March 31, 2025 15
B. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Capital Redemption Retained
= Total
Reserve Earnings
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - 8,182 8,182
Profit for the year - 1,090 1,090
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - (3) (3)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,087 1,087
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 9,269 9,269
Balance as at April 01, 2024 - 9,269 9,269
Profit for the year - 2,586 2,586
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - 122 122
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2,708 2,708
Buy-back of 4,156 equity shares (including transaction costs _
and tax on buyback) (740) (740)
Transfer from retained earnings to liability towards net assets } 4.177) (4.177)
held for distribution (Refer note 28) 177, 4177,
Transfer from retained earnings to capital redemption reserve 5 () _
for buyback of 4,156 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each*
Balance as at March 31, 2025 0o 7,060 7,060

* 0 denotes amount which is below rounding off norm adopted by the Company and its associates.

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report ef even date.
The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration No.: 012754N/N500016

/

Divy: Goel
Partner
Membership No. 513979

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

@ \(- V2T

Deepak Jain
Chairman and Director
DIN: 00004972

Akshay
Managing Director and CEO

DIN: 00795591

yap

Place : Gurugram
Date: May 15, 2025




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Background and basis of preparation

Background
Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (“the Company” or “Greenfuel” or “Company”) is a private limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in India. The

Company is engaged primarily in the business of manufacturing and sale of High-Pressure Tubes and CNG systems, Electronic Fuel injection systems for CNG, LPG
and Batteries. The Company supplies these automative components majorly to Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) for the vehicles that run on alternate
gaseous fuels. The Company is having its registered office at Plot No. 62/4, IMT Manesar, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122050. The parent of the Company is Lumax
Resource Private Limited and the ultimate parent of the Company is Lumax Auto Technologies Limited.

Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Consolidated Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on a going concern basis, except for the following:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value.

- Assets held for sale - measured at fair value less cost to sell.

- Defined benefit plans — plan assets are measured at fair value.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Company and its associates

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 9 September 2024 and 28 September 2024 notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second
Amendment Rules, 2024 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Third Amendment Rules, 2024, respectively, which amended,/ notified certain accounting
standards (see below), and are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024:

- Lease Liability in Sale and Leaseback — Amendments to Ind AS 116

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

2 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will likely differ from the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the group’s accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted
due to final outcomes deviating from estimates and assumptions made. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant
notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements. In addition, this note also explains where there
have been actual adjustments this year as a result of changes to previous estimates.

The areas involving critical estimates and judgements are:

- estimation of current tax expense and current tax payable — see 6(a)

- estimated fair value of unlisted equity securities — see note 5(a)

- estimation of defined benefit abligation — see note 12

- impairment of trade receivables — see note 5(b)

- determination of lease term and estimation of amount payable under residual value guarantees — see note 3(b)

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that might
have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances
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Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U340107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(b): Leases

Accounting policy
The Company and its associates leases various land, building, warehouse and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2 years to 7

years, but might have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Contracts might contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company and its associates allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets might not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for

leases in the Company and its associates, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and

conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company and its associates obtains the general purpose borrowing rates and makes necessary
adjustments specific to the lease e.g. lease term, security etc.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Company and its
associates is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less, without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small

items of office furniture.

Refer note 41(f) for the other accounting policies relevant to leases.

(i) Amounts recognised in Consolidated Balance Sheet
The Consolidated Balance Sheet shows the following amount relating to leases:

Particulars As at ot -As Bt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Right-of-use assets

Buildings/Warehouses 60 112 27

Equipment 573 27 43

Total 633 139 70

Particulars As at As at .As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Lease Liabilities

Current 85 219 54

Non-current 561 179 30

Total 646 398 84

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were INR 574 (March 31, 2024: INR 117) (including deferred rent portion of security deposits).




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Amortisation charge of right-of-use assets (Refer note 19)

Buildings/Warehouses 64 32
Equipment 16 16
Total 8o 48
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest expense (included in finance costs) (Refer note 22) 13 9
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) (Refer
note 21) 33 7
Total 46 16

The total cash outflow for leases (including finance cost) for the year ended March 31, 2025 were INR 93 (March 31, 2024: INR 54).

(iii) Variable Lease Payment
The Company and its associates does not have any leases with variable lease payments.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Company and its associates. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable

only by the Company and not by the respective lessor.

Critical estimate in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option,
or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is

reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).

For leases of building and warehouse, the following factors are normally the most relevant:

= If there are significant penalty payments to terminate (or not extend), the Company is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).
« If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant remaining value, the Company and its associates is typically reasonably certain to

extend (or not terminate).

« Otherwise, the Company considers other factors including historical lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to replace the

leased asset.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not exercised) or the Company and its associates becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects

this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

(v) Residual value guaranteed
There are no residual value guaranteed in the lease contracts.




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3(c): Intangible assets

Particulars Softwares Licenses Total

Year ended March 31, 2025

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 39 14 53 |
Additions 28 - 28
Asset classified as held for sale (Refer note 28) (17) - (17)
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 50 14 64
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 9 3 12
Depreciation charge during the year 33 11 44
Disposals - -
Asset classified as held for sale (Refer note 28) (17) - (17)
Closing accumulated amortisation 25 14 39
[Closing net carrying amount 25 | - | 25 |

Particulars Softwares Licenses Total

Year ended March 31, 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 21 14 35
Additions 28 - 28
Disposals (10) - (10)
Closing gross carrying amount 39 14 53
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation - = -
Depreciation charge during the year 11 3 14
Disposals (2) - (2)
Closing accumulated amortisation 9 3 12
[Closing net carrying amount 30 | 1u | 41 |

Notes:

a. Refer note 25(a) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of Intangible assets.

b. Refer note 35 for carrying value of Intangible assets charged as security by the Company and its associates.

¢. The Company and its associates has not revalued any Intangible assets during the current or the previous year.

d. The Company and its associates during the current financial year change its method of depreciation from written down value (WDV) to straight line

(SLM) that applies to all Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets, which is effectively a change in the estimate based on the future benefit or

pattern of consumption.




Greenfuel Energy Soluti Private Limited

(C

y Identification No : U40107HR PTCos5! 8)

Notes to the C lidated Fi 1
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4: Investments in associates

Asat Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023

Investment in equity instruments (fully paid-up)
Unquoted- measured at Cost
Nil [March 31, 2024: 500,000] equity shares of Iride Technologies - 50 50
Private Limited
Add: Share of Associate's profit/ (loss) - (35) (35)
Iride Fleet Management Technologies LLP - 25 25
Add: Share of Associate's profit/ (loss) - - -
Total i in i - 40 40
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments - - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 40 40
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - - - - -

Note 5: Financial assets

Accounting policy

(i) Classification of financial assets at amortised cost

The Comp and its classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both of the following criteria are met:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and

« the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial assets classified at amortised cost comprise trade ivables, loans and i in bonds.

(ii) Classification of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other compreh ive i (FVOCI) !

y and its lected at initial r ition to present changes in fair

» Equily securities (unlisted) which are not held for trading, and for which the C
value through OCI rather than profit or loss. These are strategic investments and the C

.

has irrevocably

to be more relevant.

¢ Debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the objective of the group’s business model is achieved hoth by collecting
contractual cash flows and by selling financial assets. There are currently no debt securities which are carried at FVOCI.

iii) Classification of fi ial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The C y and its classifies the following financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
= debt instr (bonds, deb es and 1 funds) that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost or FVOCI,

* equity investments that are held for trading, and

* equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company and its associates, the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Refer note 41(1) for the r ini 1 ing polici
Note 5(1): Investments
. As at Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Current Non-Cu Non-Current Current Non-Current
Investment in equity instruments (fully paid-up)
Ungquoted- measured at FVTPL
44,444 [March 31, 2024: 44,444] equity shares of Arohan Financial ;
Services Limited 54 54 - 49
Total (equity instruments) - (A) 54 54 - - 49
I in deb es (. ed at Amortised cost)
Ungquoted
Nil (March 31, 2024: Nil) debenture of 8.75% Edelweiss Marvel . 7 < ¥ o
Structured Product 4
Total (debentures) - (B) - - - - 114
Im in 1 funds ( ed at FVTPL)
Quoted
11,489 (March 31, 2024: 40,305) units of Canara Robeco Emerging > 6 ) : o
equities Reg (G) 7 9 g
248,515 (March 31, 2024: 248,515) units of DSP Nifty 50 Index Fund Reg "
) 5 53 * - 41
23,590 (March 31, 2024: 23,590) units of ICICI Pru Thematic Advantage . ”
Fund (FOF) (G) 49 45 L
17,473 (March 31, 2024: 17,473) units of Kotak Smallcap Fund (G} 41 44 - - 31
Nil (March 31, 2024: 323,288) units of Mirae Asset Focused Fund Reg (G) - 75 - - 61
173,861 (March 31, 2024: 173,861) units of Motilal Oswal Nasdaq 100 6
FOF 5 55 T = 39
Nil (March 31, 2024: 226,769) units of Parag Parikh Flexi Cap Fund Reg
©) - 170 - - 120
Nil (March 31, 2024: 1,283) units of Axis Banking & PSU Debt (G) - 31 - - 29
Nil (March 31, 2024: 175,825} units of Bandhan Corporate Bond Fund " . . 6
Reg (G) ) 3 i
Total (mutual funds) - (C) 238 [ - - 393
Total investments - (A+B+C) 292 Eﬁ - - "ﬁ
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 139 408 - - 548
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 238 600 - - 607
Aggregate of unquoted in 100 100 - - 100

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Lidmted Fi 121G

Notes to the C
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5(b): Trade receivables
Accounting policy

Trade ivables are due from
payment is due only on the passage of time).

and its right to id, (that is,

for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflect the C

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant D The Ci and its holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting
the contractual eash flows and thereft them sub ly at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.
For trade ivables, the C and its applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be d from initial of the ivabl
Refer note 41(i) for the other accounting policies relevant to trade receivables
As at As at Asat

artaian March 31, 2035 rch 31, zosﬂ April 1, 2023
Trade receivables from contract with customers ~ billed 4,042 581 2,530
Trade receivables from contract with customers — unbilled - ] -
Trade receivables from contract with customers — related parties (Refer note 24(c)) - 1,252 168
Less: Loss allowance (20) (26) {10)
Total receivables 4,022 7,037 2,688
Current portion 4,022 7,037 2,688
Non-current portion - - -
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considered good — secured - ] -
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 4,042 7,063 2,698
Trade receivables which have significant increase in eredit risk - - -
Trade receivables — credit impaired . = a
Total 4,042 7,063 2,608
Less: Loss allowance (20} (26) (10)
Total trade receivables 4,032 7,937 3,688
Aging of trade receivables:

As at March 31, 2025
Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from the due date
6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

yoars

Unbilled Not due Lesa than 6 Total

months

(i) Undisputed trade receivables
- considered good - 2,461 1.338 150 858 4 1
- which have significant increase in credit risk B - - = - - -
- credit impaired =

4,042

(ii) Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - - - S - = = :
- which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - 5

- creditimpaired - -

Total - 1,3@

88|

2,461 150]

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

|(i) Undisputed trade receivables
- considered = 4,289 2,326 433 14
- which have significant increase in credit risk - - - ~ - - n =
- credit impaired - - - - - - -

(ii) Disputed trade receivables -
- considered good - B -
- which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
- credit impaired - - - = - .
Total - 4,289| 2,326

As at Aprils, 2023

Particulars

(1) Undisputed trade receivables

Outstan for followin;
6 months- 1 year 1-2 years

ods from the due date
2-3 years

More than 3 Total

years

Unbilled Not due Less than 6

7:063|

Qutstanding for following periods from the due date

6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
years

Unbilled Not due Lessthan 6 Total

months

- considered good = 300

166

- which have significant increase in credit risk

- credit impaired

I{ii} Disputed trade receivables
idered good

- which have significant increase in credit risk

- credit impaired

Total

2 00

2,224

il

ool
* 0 denotes amount which is below rounding off norm adepted by the Company and its associates,
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Notes to the C

(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 5(c): Loans
Particulars Asnat March 31, 2025 As at March 33, 2024 Asat April 3, 2033
Current Non:-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Lease receivables {Refer note 29) - - 99 150 - -
Loan to associates (Refer note 31(c) and 24(d)) - 88 - Bg -
Loan to related parties (Refer note 31(c)) - - . 8 -
Loan to employees 2 - 3 - 9 -
Less: Loss allowance - - - - - -
Total loans 2 - i90 150 106 -
Break-up of security details
. As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Loans considered good — secured B - -
Loans considered good — unsecured 2 340 106
Loans which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
Loans — credit impaired - = .
Total 2 340 106
Less: Loss allowance - B -
Total loans 2 340 106
Details of loans and advances in the nature of loans
Particulars As at M
Percentage to the Percentage to the Percentage to the
Amount total loans and Amount total loans and Amount total loans and
di d in the i d in the d in the
nature of loans nature of lonns nature of loans
- Secnd 3
Other related parties - 88 26% 97 1%
Total - = 88 26% 97 91%
Note 5{d}{i): Cash and cash equival
As at Asat As at
garticulars March 31,2025 March g, 3024 April 3, 2023
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 545 40 54
Cash on hand 1 1 1
546 ar 5.

Total cash and cash equivalents

Note:

‘There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior periods.

Note 5(d)(il): Other bank balances

Particulars

As at

Deposits with ariginal matority of more than three months but less than twelve months (Refer note below)

Total other bank balances

Note:

Asat

As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024  Aprils, 2033
17 . -

17

(a) Long-term deposits with banks includes deposits aggregating to INR 10 (March 31, 2024: INR Nil) pledged with bank for issue of guarantees with the bankers and government authorities,

Note 5(¢c}): Other financial assets

As at March 31,2035

As at March 31, 2024

As at April 1, 2023

Particulars
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

() Seeurity deposits:
- Unsecured, considered good [] 24 19 45 7 18
Total 3 24 19 45 7 18
Less : Loss allowance = - - - - -
Total (A) 6 24 19 45 7 18
(ii) Others:

- Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months (Refer note below) - 31 - 68 - 188
- Earnest money deposit 7 - 15 - 8 -
- Interest accrued on fixed deposits o - - - -

- Other receivables 77 - i B = =
Total 84 31 5 68 8 88
Less : Loss allowance - - - - - -
Total (B) 84 3 15 68 8 188
Total other financial assets (A+B) 90 [ 34 113 15 206
* 0 denotes amount which is below off norm adopted by the C and its

Note:

(a) Long-term deposits with banks includes deposits aggregating to INR 31 (March 31, 2024: INR 68) pledged with bank for issue of guarantees with the bankers and government authorities.

Note 6(a): Current tax asscts (not)
culars Asat As at As at
Part March 31,2025 March 31,3024  April 3, 2023
Opening balance 215 201 462
Add: Taxes paid 1,184 618 602
Less: Refund received during the year (193) (267) (441)
Less: Amount written off (22) - -
Less: Current tax payable for the year {910) {427) (332)
224 215 191

Closing balance




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the C lidated Fi clal
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6(b): Deferred tax nssets (net)

Particulars

Asat As at As at
March 31,2035 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferrved tax assets

Defined benefit obligations 52 67 51
Property, plant and equipment 80 57 39
Intangible assets 10 1 1
Other items:
- Lease liabilities 163 100 21
- Loss allowance on financial assets - 7 3
- Others 43 2 ]
Total deferred tax assets (A) 48 234 115
Deferred tax liabilities
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 13 37 2
Lease receivables - 63 -
Other items:
- Right-of-use assets 159 35 18
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 173 135 20
Total deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (A-B) 176 99 95
Movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities
Right-of-use Property, Defined benefit Lease Loss allowance Other items Total
Particulars assets plant and obligations liabilities on financial
equipment assets

At April 1, 2024 [deferred tax nssets/ (deferred tax linbilities)] (35) 57 67 100 7 {97) 99
Charged/(credited)

- to profit or loss (129) 23 (38) 63 ) 137 54

- to other comprehensive income - - 23 - - - 23
At March 31, 2025 [deferred tax assets/ (deferred tax linbilities)] {’jﬂ 8_2 52 163 - 40 176
At April 1, 2023 [deferred tax assets/ (deferred tax liabilities)] (8 39 51 21 3 (1) 95
Charged/(credited)

- to profit or loss 17) 18 17 79 4 (96) 5

- to other comprehensive income - - (1) - - - ()
At March 31, 2024 [deferred tax assets/ (deferred tax Liabilities)] (w 57 67 100 - _ny) 99

Note 7: Inventories

Accounting policy

The costs of individual items of inventory are determined on a moving weighted average basis. Volume rebates or discounts are taken into account when estimating the cost of inventory i it is probable that they

have been earned and will take effect.

Refer note 41(j) for the C and its iates other ing policies for i
n Asat As at Asat
il March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April1, 2023
Raw materials 2,297 3260 5478
Work-in-progress 176 46 -
Finished goods 1,124 704 1,019
Stock-in-trade Q 83 34
Stores and spares 3 26 57
Total inventories kﬁno $119 ‘ﬂﬂ
Notes:
a) Write-d of i ies to net realisable value d to INR 154 (March 31, 2024 - INR Nil), These were recognised as an expense during the year and included in ‘changes in value of inventories of work-
in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods’ in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
b) Raw materials and Stock-in-trade includes goods in transit amounted to INR 145 {(March 31, 2024: INR Nil)
Note 8: Other current nssets
Asat As at Asat
Partdculars March 31,2025 March 31,2024 Aprily, 2033
Prepaid expenses 3 69 8
Unsecured, considered good
- Bal with gov horiti 270 189 416
- Advance to suppliers 364 329 Goy
Total other current assets SSJ Iaz 1,121
Nate g(a): Assets classified as held for sale
As at Asat As at
Farticulars March 31,3025 March3i, 2024 Aprily, 2023
Property, plant and equipment 132 - 5
Total assels elassified as held for sale 122 - -
Note:
At March 31, 2025, assets held for sale related to the property located at Plot No. 62, Sector — 4, IMT M: Gurgaon, Hary 050. The tr ion that resulted in the reclassification of assets held for sale
at March 31, 2025, are d to be leted in FY 2025-26.
Note 9(b): Asscts classified as held for disteibution
N As at Asat Asal
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Property, plant and equipment 771 - _
Right-of-use assets 83 = s
Investments (current and non-current) [Net of impairment aggregating to INR 75] - - -
Inventories [Net of impairment aggregating to INR 68] 943 - =
Trade receivables [Net of impairment aggregating to INR 77] 2,935 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 320 - -
Loans (current and non-current) 169
Other financial assets {current and non-current) 42
Other assets {current and non-current) 72 ~

Total assels classified as held for distribution (Refer note 28)
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Note 10: Equity

Note 10(a): Equity share capital
Equity share
Particulars N(;.i: i!::;l)res capital (par
* value)

Authorised equity share capital

As at April 1, 2023 250,000 25
Increase/(decrease) during the year - =
As at March 31, 2024 250,000 25
As at April 1, 2024 250,000 25
Increase/(decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2025 250,000 25
I d, subscribed and fully paid up:

. Asat Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023
Equity shares (in nos.) 145,844 150,000 150,000

Equity share capital 5 . 1
[face value of INR 10 each, fully paid up] 5 5 5
Total 15 15 15
(i) Movements in equity share capital
Equity share
Particulars Nt;.i:tl':,l;a)res capital (par
- value)

As at April 1, 2023 150,000 15
Less: Equity shares bought back - -
As at March 31, 2024 150,000 15
As at April 1, 2024 150,000 15
Less: Equity shares bought back (4,156) (0)
As at March 31, 2025 145,844 15_

(i)

(iii)

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

Equity shares have a par value of INR 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the company in proportion to the
number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person ot by proxy is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

Shares of the company held by holding/ulti holding Company
. Asat As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023

- Lumax Resources Private Limited, Holding Company 87,507 =




Gr fuel Energy Sol Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U30107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1, 2023
Number of 5 Number of . Number of .
shares (in nos.) % holding shares (in nos.) % holding shares (in nos.) % holding
- Lumax Resources Private Limited, Holding . . . .
Company 87,507 60%
- Akshay Kashyap 58,336 40% 144,000 96% 144,000 96%
(v) Details of shareholding of promoters
As at March 31, 2025
Per of Per of
Particulars N(;i:izl;a;es total number of change during
" shares the year
- Lumax Resources Private Limited, Holding Company 87,507 60% 60%
- Akshay Kashyap 58,336 40% -56%
- Sunanda Kashyap 1 0% -4%
Total M 100% o%
As at March 31, 2024
Per of Per ge of
Particulars N(Ei:f:’l;a;es total ber of ch d g
B shares the year
- Akshay Kashyap 144,000 96% -
- Sunanda Kashyap 6,000 4% -
Total 150,000 100% =
As at April 1, 2023
Per of Per of
Particulars N';i:::‘;es total ber of ch: duri
. shares the year
- Akshay Kashyap 144,000 96% -
- Sunanda Kashyap 6,000 4% -
Total 150,000 100% -
(vi) Shares bought back
During the year ended March 31,2025, Company has bought back a total of 4,156 fully paid-up equity shares of face value of INR 10 each at an aggregate amount of INR
600 from all eligible equity shareholders of the Company luding the p s) (excluding transaction cost) through the "tender offer” process at price of INR
14,435.88 per share. The equity shares bought back have been fully extinguished on September 26, 2024 and the paid-up equity share capital of the Company has been
reduced to that extent. As a result of the aforesaid buyback, an aggregate amount of INR 0 has been transferred to the capital redemption reserve representing the face
value of equity share capital bought back.
Note 10(b): Other equity
. Asat As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023
Capital redemption reserve [ - -
Retained earnings 72,060 9,260 8,182
Total other equity 7,060 9,269 8,182
Movement of reserves:
i) Capital redemption reserve
: As at Asat As at
SRrEchlars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023
Opening balance - - -
Add: Transfer to capital redemption reserve from retained earnings o - -
Closing balance o - -
i) Retained earnings
H As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023
Opening balance 9,269 8,182 8,182
Add: Net profit for the period ] 2,586 1,090 -
Add: Ttems of other comprehensive i recognised directly in 1 d earnings
-R of post-employ benefit obligation, net of tax 122 (3) -
Less: Transfer to capital redemption reserve from retained earnings (o) - -
Transfer from retained earnings to liability towards net assets held for distribution (Refer note 28) (4177) - -
Less: Amount utilised in buy-back of equity shares(including transaction costs and tax on buyback) [refer
(740) = &
note 10(a)]
Closing balance 7,060 9,269 8,182

* 0 denotes amount which is below rounding off norm adopted by the Company.
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Note 11: Financial liabilities
Note 11(a): Non-current borrowings
: As at As at As at
L March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023

Secured
Term loans
- Rupee loan from banks (Refer note (a) below) - 291 378
- Vehicle loan from banks (Refer note (a) below) 18 24 42
- Vehicle loan from financial institutions (Refer note (a} below) 54 82 -
Total 72 397 420
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (included in current borrowings) (41) (121) (100)
Less: Interest accrued (included in current borrowings) (0) - -
Total non-current borrowings 31 276 320

* 0 denotes amount which is below rounding off norm adopted by the Company and its associates.

Notes:

(a) Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2024: INR 291) from banks carrying interest @Repo Rate +2.5% per annum are
secured by way of first pari pasu equitable mortgage charge on immovable and moveable properties of the Company and its associates both present and future.
This loan is repayable in equal quarterly installment of INR 7 Lacs each over a period of 60 months starting from October 10, 2022.

(b) Vehicle loan amounting INR 72 (March 31, 2024: INR 106) from Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd and Toyota Financial Services Limited (financial institution)
carrying interest @6.99%-8.51% per annum are secured by way of hypothecation of the respective vehicles acquired out of proceeds thereof. These loans are

repayable over a period of 3-5 years from the date of availment.

Note 11{a): Current borrowings
N As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023
Loans repayable on demand
Secured
Cash credit facilities from banks (Refer note (a) below) - 1,563 2,635
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note (a) below) 41 121 100
Total current borrowings 41 1,684 2,735

Notes:

(c) Cash credit facilities are taken by the Company is secured by first charge by way of hypothecation on current assets, moveable assets & moveable fixed assets
both present and future and by first charge ranking pari-passu by way of equitable mortgage over certain specified immoveable properties and by way of mortgage
on the moveable fixed assets of the Company. Refer note 3(a), 3(b) and 3(c) for details of immovable properties charged as security.

(d) Current rate of interest on cash credit facility availed from Standard Chartered and Kotak Mahindra bank ranges from 8.50% p.a. to 9.75% p.a.

Net debt reconcilintion
= As at As at As at

I March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 April 1, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents 546 41 55
Borrowings (72) (1,960) (3,055)
Lease Liabilities (646) (398) (84)
Net debt (72) (2,317) (3,084)

Particulars Cash,an‘d c?sh Borrowings Lease Liabilities Total

equi

Net debt as at April 1, 2024 41 (1,959) (399) (2,317)
Cash flows 826 1,888 217 2,931
New leases B (723) (723)
Interest expense (10) (13) (23)
Interest paid 10 13 23
Other non-cash movements -

- Acquisitions/disposals - - -

- Transfer to liabilities relating to assets classified as held for sale (320) - 257 (6a3)
Net debt as at March 31, 2025 547 (72) (647) (172)
Net debt as at April 1, 2023 55 (3,055) (84) (3,084)
Cash flows (14) 1,096 69 1,151
New leases - (384) (384)
Interest expense - (4) (9} (13)
Interest paid - 4 9 13
Other non-cash movements - -

- Acquisitions/disposals - = - -

- Fair value adjustments - = - -
Net debt as at March 31, 2024 41 (1,959) (399) (2,317)




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited

(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)
Notes to the C: lidated Fi inl St
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11(h): Trade payables
Particulars

March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

As at

As at
April 1, 2023

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note (a) below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Related party payables (Refer note 24(c))

Total trade payables

Aging of trade payables:

As at March 31, 2025

482 574
2,442 2,005
2 201

263
1477

n=2m§ 2i7liu

1,742

Particulars Unbilled Not due

Less than 1 year

Outstanding for following

is from the due date

1-2 years

2-3 years More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade pay

- Micro enterprises and small enterprises =

339

130

482

- Others 503 1.574

301

32

34 o

2.444

(ii) Disputed trade payables

- Micro enterprises and small enterprises = -

- Others - -

Total 503 1,913

431

a9

40 -

2,026

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbilled Not due

Less than 1 year

Outstanding for following

1-2 years

periods from the due date

More than 3
years

2-3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade payables

- Micro enterprises and small enterprises 512

35

574

- Others 250 1,651

287

17

2,206

(i) Disputed trade payabl

- Micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Others

Total 250 2,163

342

2,780

As at April 1, 2023

Particulars Unbilled Not due

Outstanding for following

periods from the due date

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

More than 3
years

2-3 years

Total

{i) Undisputed trade payabl

- Micro enterprises ﬂnd small enterprises - 28

235

263

- Others 258 247

972

1,479

(i) Disputed trade payables

- Micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

- Others - =

Total 258 274

1,207

1,742

Notes:

(a) Additional disclosure as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006.

Dues to micro and small enterprises

The Company and its associates has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘(MSMED Act’). The disclosures pursuant to the said

MSMED Act are as follows:

Particulars

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

As at

April 1, 2023

(i) Principal dueto
(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
(iii) Principal paid to
@iv)
)
(vi)
(vii)

Further interest remaining due and pnynble for earlier years

Note: Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

and its

i i d under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

li i d under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppllers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed
Interest due and payabl regi d under MSMED Act, for payments already made

* 0 denotes amount which is below r g off norm adopted by the C:

d by the

263



Greenfuel Energy Soluti Private Li
[(o y Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11{c): Other financial linbilities

As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Employee benefits payable 133 - 154 - 130 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings [b] - - - - -
Security deposit received - - - 23 - -
Capital creditors 21 - 6 - 13 -
Other payable - - - - - -
Total other financial liabilities 154 - 160 23 143 -
* 0 denotes amount which is below r ding off norm adopted by the C: and its
Note 12: Provisi - employee benefit obligations
As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Leave obligations (Refer note (i) below) 69 - 47 - 42 -
Gratuity (Refer note (ii) below) 14 123 47 173 4 156
Total employee benefit obligations 83 123 94 173 ﬂ.‘.‘ 156
(1) Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company and its associates’s liability for earned leave which are classified as other long-term benefits.

The entire amount of the provision of INR 69 (March 31, 2024 — INR 47) is presented as current, since the Company and its associates does not have an unconditional right, at the end of the reporting
period, to defer settlement for any of these obligations beyond 12 months. However, based on past experience, the Company and its associates does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of
accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

. As at As at As at
Eart March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023

Leave obligations not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 62 42 38

(ii) Post-employment obligations - Gratuity

The Company and its associates provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years
of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company and its associates makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The Company and its associates does not fully fund the liability and
maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

The Company and its associates also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company and its associates is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further
contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 29 (March 31, 2024 — INR 25).

The recognised in the bal sheet and the move! in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:
Present value of Fair value of Net defined
Defined benefit- Gratuity obligation plan assets benefit
B (unfunded) obligation

April 01, 2024 220 - 220
Current service cost 59 - 59
Interest expense/(income) 15 = 15
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 74 - 74
RBe:measurements (gain)/loss arising from:
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions 67) B 67)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (25) - (25)
Return on plan assets, excludi recognised in interest exp /(income) -
Experience (gains)/losses (53) - (53)
Total recognised in other comprehensive i (145) - (145)
Benefit payments (1) - [¢)]
Liabilities relating to assets classified as held for distribution (Refer note 28} (11) - (11)
March 31, 2025 137 - 137
April 01, 2023 160 - 160
Current service cost 51 o 51
Interest expense/(income) 11 - 11
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 62 - 62
(Gain)/ loss from change in demographic assumptions - - -
Gain/(loss) from change in financial assumptions [ = 9
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in interest expense/(income) = -
Experience (gains)/losses (5) = (5)
Total amount recognised in other j
comprehensive income - 4
Benefit payments (6) - (6)

220 - 220

March 31, 2024
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The net liability is disclosed as follows:

. As at As at As at
G March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023
Present value of obligations 137 220 160
Fair value of plan assets - - -
Deficit of funded plans 137 220 160
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

As at As at As at
Actuarial assumption March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Discount rate 6.55% 7.15% 7.45%
Salary growth rate 12.00% 15.00% 15.00%
Indian assured Indian assured Indian assured
Mortality rate lives mortality lives mortality lives mortality
(2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14)
Employee turnover / Attrition rate
18 to 30 years 13.00% 5.00% 5.00%
30 to 45 years 13.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Above 45 years 13.00% 5.00% 5.00%
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
s B As at As at As at
Sensitivity analysis March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Decrease in Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in Increase in

| ion ion ion i ion
Discount rate (1%) 1% (1%) 1% (%) 1%
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 7.8% (6.9%) 16.3% -13.2% 16.3% -13.2%
Salary growth rate (1%) 1% (1%) 1% (1%) 1%
% change compared to base due to sensitivity (5.1%) 5.5% -7.7% 7.2% -7.7% 7.2%
Attrition rate (1%) 1% (%) 1% (1%) 1%
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 12.7% (6.9%) 12.7% -9.0% 12.7% -9.0%
Mortality rate (1%) 1% (1%) 1% (1%) 1%
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% -0.1% 0.1% -0.1%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an ption while holding all other i In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
might be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to signifi actuarial ptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated

with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the C and its i and of its i is dtoa ber of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
(a) Interest rate risk: The plan exp the Company and its iates to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above

benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

to meet

(b) Liquidity risk: This is the risk that the Company and its associates is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non-availability of gh cash/cash eq
the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

(c) Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of
salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

(d) D hic risk: The C and its i has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The C and its i is exposed to the risk of actual

experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

(e) Regulatory risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 {(as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations
requiring higher gratuity pay (eg.I in the imum limit on gratuity to INR 20).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Defined benefit liability and employer contributions:
The C: and its i aims to elimi the deficit in defined benefit gratuity plan. Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. The Company and its i iders that the

contribution set at the last valuation date is sufficient to eliminate the deficit over the period and that regular contributions, which are based on service costs, will not increase significantly.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7.5 years (March 31, 2024: 15 vears). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as follows:

Particulars Less than Between Over Total
n year 1-5 years 5 years
March 31, 2025
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 15 65 170 250
Total 15 65 170 250
March 31, 2024
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 4 21 469 494
Total 4 21 469 494
April 1, 2023
Defined benefit obligation (gratuity) 2 12 281 296
Total 2 12 281 296
Note 13: Other current linbilities

A As at As at As at
habiiapis March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023
Advance from customers 193 a8 35
Statutory dues payable 124 156 78
Advance received for sale of property, plant and equipment - -
Total other current Labilities 867 194 13

Note 14: Liabilities relating to assets classified as held for distribution
. As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  April 1, 2023

Linhility towards net assets held for distribution, transfer from retained earnings 4,177
Lease liabilities 257 - -
Trade payables 778 - -
Other financial liabilities 66 - -
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 14 - -
Other current liabilities 43 - -
Total liabilities relating to assets classified as held for distribution (Refer note 28) Eﬁ - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 15: Revenue from operations

®

(i)

(iii)

@Gv)

)

Accounting policy

Sale of goods

The Company and its associates manufactures and sells a range of High-Pressure Tubes and CNG systems, Electronic Fuel injection systems for
CNG, LPG and Batteries. Sales are recognised when control of the goods has transferred. Control is considered to be transferred at the point in
time when the products have been delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’s acceptance of the products. Delivery has occurred when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and the customer has accepted the

goods.

Revenue from sales is recognised based on the contract price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the expected value method, and revenue is only recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability (included in other current liabilities) is recognised for expected
volume discounts payable to customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. Since the sales are made with a credit term
of 30 to 90 days, there is no significant element of financing.

Areceivable is recognised when the goods are delivered since this is the point in time when the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Sale of services

The Company and its associates provides battery on lease and after sale services under fixed-price. Revenue from providing services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. Revenue is recognised based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting periodin which the services are rendered as per the contractual terms with the customers.

Financing components

The Company and its associates does not have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the
customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company and its associates does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for a significant financing component or the time value of money.

The Company and its associates derives the following types of revenue:

. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products
- Sale of finished goods 31,519 21,407
Sale of services 165 31
Other operating revenue
- Scrap sales 2 1
Total revenue from continuing operations 31,686 21,439

Disclosures on disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Company and its associates derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services at a point in time in a
manner in which the Company and its associates transfers the control of goods and services to customers. The Board of Directors of the Company
and its associates, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company and its associates's
performance, allocates resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicators of the Company and its associates as a single unit.
Therefore the information has been disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Ind'AS 108- 'Operating Segment Reporting'. Refer note 27

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particnlars Marchy31, 2025 Marchy31, 2024
A. Timing of the transfer of goods or services
Performance obligation satisfied at a point in time
Sale of goods 31,521 21,408
Sale of services 165 31
Total 31,686 21,439
B. Geographical locations
Within India 31,491 21,428
Outside India 1 195 11

Total 31,686 21,439
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(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contract Price 31,879 21,477

Adjustments for:

Incentive, rebate and discounts (193) (38)

Revenue from continuing operations 31,686 21,439

Note 16(a): Other income

Accounting policy

Government grants

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate and presented within other income. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful lives of the related assets and presented within other income. See note 39(d) for the remaining relevant accounting policies.

Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that subsequently become credit impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss

allowance).

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest income from financial assets at amortised cost

- on fixed deposits

- on Income Tax refund

- Others

Unwinding of discount on security deposits

Export Incentives

Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (excluding property, 60 )

plant and equipment sold as part of the discontinued operation)

Total other income 80 25

N = NN W
w
[~1

Note 16(b): Other gains/(losses) — net

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Net gain/(loss) on sale of investments 24 (2)

Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets mandatorily measured at fair 13 -

value through profit or loss

Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 26 33
Total other gains/(losses) — net 63 170
Note 17(a): Cost of materials consumed
. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials, Stores and spares at the beginning of the year 2,109 2,848
Add: Purchases 22,547 13,941
Less: Raw materials, Stores and spares at the end of the year (2,300) (2,100)
Total cost of materials consumed 22,356 14,680

+Ug
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(Company Identification No : U340107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17(b): Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods

Total net impairment losses on financial assets

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance
Work-in-progress 46 -
Finished goods 704 1,019
Stock-in-trade 83 34
Total opening balance 833 1,053
Closing balance
Work-in-progress 176 46
Finished goods 1,124 704
Stock-in-trade 0 83
Total closing balance 1,300 833
Total Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and 467 -
finished goods 467
Note 18: Employee benefits expense
. For the year ended For the year ended
ERESCTIATS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,733 1,064
Contribution to employees' provident fund (Refer note 12) 29 25
Gratuity (Refer note 12) 48 38
Leave compensation (Refer note 12) (18) 19
Staff welfare expenses 128 60
Total employee benefit expense 1,920 1,206
Note 19: Depreciation and amortisation expense
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3(a) and 28) 129 134
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 3(b) and 28) 80 48
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4 and 28) 28 10
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 237 192
Note 20: Net impairment losses on financial assets
) For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 8 4
8 4
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(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21: Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Consumption of stores and spares 385 231
Repairs and maintenance

- Plant and machinery 35 24

- Buildings 27 8

- Others 18 20
Freight outward 350 201
Job work charges 50 93
Power and fuel 39 26
Travelling and conveyance 313 319
Rental charges 33 7
Security charges 22 16
Legal and professional 950 93
Communication expenses 10 8
Bank charges 14 10
Design, support and testing charges 60 28
Rates and taxes 30 2
Insurance 3 4
Printing and stationery 6 6
Advertisement and sales promotion 82 79
Research & Development 188 86
Assets written off 102 138
Royalty 232 193
Payment to auditors (Refer note 21(a)) 25 7
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer note 21(b)) 39 37
Miscellaneous expenses 32 39
Total other expenses 3,045 1,674

Note 21(a): Details of payments to auditors
: For the year ended For the year ended

Earticulars Marchy:; 1, 2025 Marchy31, 2024
Payment to auditors (excluding taxes)
As auditor:
Audit fee 9 4
Tax audit fee 2 2
In other capacities:
Certification fees 14 1
Re-imbursement of expenses - -
Total payments to auditors 25 7

=\ o
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Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21(b): Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contribution to promotion of social welfare 21 37
Contribution to promotion of education 18 -
Total 39 37_
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 39 37
Amount spent during the year on:
(i) Construction / acquisition of an asset - -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above
- Amount spent towards promotion of education by way of contribution to
Maulana Abdul Kalam Azad Educational Society and social welfare to Vision
Foundation
- In respect of current year obligation 39 37
- In respect of previous Year obligation - -
Total 39 37
Details of excess CSR expenditure under 135(5) of the Companies Act
(Balance)/ Excess spent as at April Amount required to be Amount spent (Balance)/ Excess
01, 2024 spent during the year during the year |spent as at March 31,
2025
- 39 39 =
(Balance)/ Excess spent as at April Amount required to be Amount spent (Balance)/ Excess
01, 2023 spent during the year during the year |spent as at March 31,
2024
- 37 37 =

Note 22: Finance costs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on borrowings 10 4
Interest on delayed payment to MSME vendors 1 -
Interest on late payment of government dues* o] -
Interest and finance charges on lease labilities 13 9
Interest on others 85 57
Total finance costs 109 70

* 0 denotes amount which is below rounding off norm adopted by the Company and its associates.
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(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23: Income tax expense
This note provides an analysis of the Company and its associates’s income tax expense, and amounts that are recognised

directly in equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable and non-deductible items. It also explains significant
estimates made in relation to the Company and its associates’s tax positions.

For the year ended For the year ended

EaEGCuinrs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the year 910 427
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods - -
Total current tax expense (A) 910 427
Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (77) (4)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (B) (77) (1)
Income tax expense (A+B) 8;.;_3Ir 423
Income tax expense is attributable to:

Profit from continuing operations 833 423
Profit from discontinued operation - -
Total 833 423

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 4,621 3,588
Profit from discontinued operation before income tax expense (1,225) (2,076)
Total 3,396 1,512
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2024: 25.168%) 855 381
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating

taxable income:

- Corporate social responsibility expenditure 10 9
- Loss/ (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (15) 2
- Loss/(Profit) on sale of long-term investments (difference in tax rates

applicable on long-term capital gain and effective tax rate) &) 0
- Others (5) 31
Income tax expense 842 423

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable
income. Given the complexities of contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustment to tax income and expense already recorded.

Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Refer note 6(a) for further
details.
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Note 24: Rel

A,

d party discl e
List of related parties

(a) Parent entities

Place of
incorporation

Type

Name

Ownership interest

As at
March 31, 2025

As at

Ultimate Holding Company India

March 31, 2024

Lumax Auto Technologies Limited

Holding C: y India

60.00%

Lumax Resource Private Limited

P

(b) Associates

Place of

Name incorporation

Ownership interest

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

50.00%

50.00%

Iride Technologies Private Limited Associ India

50.00%

50.00%

Iride Fleet Management Technologies LLP Associate India

(c) Entities incorporated in India over which Key Management Personnel exercises significant influence
- E-Chargeup Solutions Private Limited

- Greencore Electronics Private Limited

- Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited

- Ark Fluid System Components Private Limited

- Ark Industrial Products Private Limited

- Everything Auto

(d) Key Management Personnel (KMP), relatives and other related entities
(i) Key Management Personnel

Akshay Kashyap (Director till November 25, 2025 and Managing Director and CEO; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)
Inala Veerabhadra Rao (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)

Priyanka Gulati (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024}

Deepak Jain (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)

Ajay Kashyap (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)

Anmol Jain (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)

Naval Khanna (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)

Sanjay Mehta (Director; w.e.f. November 26, 2024)

Sunanda Kashyap (Former Director, retired on November 26, 2024)

(ii) Relatives of Key Management Personnel and their related entities
Sunanda Kashyap (Wife of Managing Director)

Note: Related parties listed in (c) and (d)(ii} are those with whom the Company and its associates had transactions during the current or previous year.

Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

i) Sale of goods
- E-Chargeup Solutions Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)
- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)
- Everything Auto

ii) Sale of services
- E-Chargeup Solutions Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)
- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

iii) Interest income
- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

iv) Reiml of exp (received)
- E-Chargeup Solutions Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)
- Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

vi) Purchase of goods
- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

1,131
82

304
22

65

w

3,218

688
612
3
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D.

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 20243

vii) Legal and professional expenses
- Ark Fluid System Components Private Limited
- Ark Industrial Products Private Limited

viii) Commission
- Everything Auto

viii) Sale of property, plant and equipment
- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

ix) Advance received for sale of property, plant and equipment
- Akshay Kashyap

x) Sitting fees

- Inala Veerabhadra Rao

- Priyanka Gulati

xi) Key per 1 p jon
Akshay Kashyap, Managing Director and CEO
Sunanda Kashyap, Former Director

Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services
1

18
14

550

o

320
20

18
14

438

105

180
30

The following b are ding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

Asat
March 31, 2024

i) Trade receivables and other financial assets

- E-Chargeup Solutions Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

- Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

ii) Trade payables and other financial liabilities

- Ark Fluid System Components Private Limited

- Ark Industrial Products Private Limited

- Greencore Electronics Private Limited (related to discontinued operations)

iii) Other current liabilities
- Akshay Kashyap

iii) Loans
- Iride Technologies Private Limited

1,151
539
[}

188

550

649
603

88

Loans to/from related parties

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Loans to related parties

Beginning of the year

Loans advanced

Loan repayment received

Interest charged

Interest received

Charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss
End of the year (Refer note 5(c))

Notes:
and no loss all has been r

i) There is no loss allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding bal

ii) The transactions with related parties were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates.

h

iii) All ding bal are ed and repay in cash.

d during the year in respect of receivables due from related parties.
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Note 25: Commitments

Particulars b ASEl
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

- Property, plant and equipment (Net of capital advance INR NIL (March 31, 2024: INR NIL) -

b) Other Commitments

- Bank guarantees to tax authorities 4

Total capital and other commitments 4

S ES

Note 26: Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company and its associates not acknowledged as debt:

: As at As at
Parti
culars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Central excise and customs [Refer note (a) belaw) 4 4
Total contingent liabilities 4 4

Contingent liabilitics comprise:

a) The Company and its associates has received an order dated October 19, 2023, from the Office of the Principal Commissioner of Customs, Air Cargo Complex (Import), addressing procedural
lapses identified in connection with concessions availed for the import of LPG/ CNG conversion kits. The order imposes a penalty of INR 4 against which the Company and its associates has filed
an appeal. The Company and its associates filed an appeal with the CESTAT on December 29, 2023 against the Commissioner’s order.

Pending resolution of the respective proceedings for the above stated ongoing disputes, it is not practicable for the Company and its associates to estimate the timing of cash outflow, if any, in
respect of the above which will be determined only on the receipt of the judgements/decision pending with various forums/authorities.

Based on the view of the independent external/ internal legal counsels, the Company and its associates’s management believes that more likely than not, the cases will be decided in the favour of
the Company and its associates. Accordingly, no provision is considered necessary in this regard in the books of accounts.

Note 27: Segment information
The Board of Directors of the Company and its associates, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company and its associates's performance,
allocates resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicators of the Company and its associates as a single unit after discontinuing battery business. On November 26, 2024, the
Company and its associates entered into an agreement with Lumax Resources Private Limited (Holding Company and its associates), where the Company and its associates announced its
intention to exit the battery business with effect from October 1, 2024 and identified Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited as a prospective buyer. The Company and its associates also filed
a Scheme of Arrangement for the demerger of the battery business to the National Company and its associates Law Tribunal. The information about this discontinued segment is provided detailed
in note 28. Therefore there is no reportable segment for the Company and its associates, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108- 'Operating Segment Reporting', notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.
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Note 28: Discontinued operation
On November 26, 2024, the Company entered into an agreement with Lumax Resources Private Limited (Holding Company), where the
Company announced its intention to exit the battery business with effect from October 1, 2024 and identified Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private
Limited as a prospective buyer. The Company also filed a Scheme of Arrangement for the demerger of the battery business to the National
Company Law Tribunal.

Further, on November 26, 2024, the Company entered into an agreement with Lumax Resources Private Limited (Holding Company), where the
Company agree that any amount, proceeds and/ or receivables received or to be received by the Company in relation to the Electronics Business,
including but not limited to, such amount, refunds, reimbursements, insurance payouts, proceeds and/ or receivables received by the Company
with respect to Electronics business, shall be solely, reserved for the benefit of the Greencore Electronics Private Limited (entity controlled by
Akshay Kashyap).

A. The financial performance and cash flow information relating to the discontinued operation is set out below.
For the year ended For the year ended

Eazticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

i) Financial Performance

Revenue 7,325 7,823
Expenses (8,552) (9,899)
Profit before share of net profits of associates accounted for using cost and

tax (1,227) (2,076)
Share of net profits/(loss) of associates accounted for using cost method 2 (o)
Profit before tax (1,225) (2,076)
Income tax expense - -
Profit after income tax from discontinued operation (2,450) (4,152)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 55 16
Other comprehensive income from discontinued operations (2,395) (4,1&

B. Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for distribution
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held for distribution in relation to the discontinued operation as at March 31, 2025:

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, zo25 March 31, 2024
Assets classified as held for distribution
Property, plant and equipment 771 -
Right-of-use assets 83 :
Investments (current and non-current) [Net of impairment aggregating to INR 75] - -
Inventories [Net of impairment aggregating to INR 68] 943 -
Trade receivables [Net of impairment aggregating to INR 77] 2,935 -
Cash and cash equivalents 320 -
Loans (current and non-current) 169 -
Other financial assets (current and non-current) 42 -
Other assets (current and non-current) 72 -
Total assets of disposal group held for distribution 5,335 -
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for distribution
Liability towards net assets held for distribution, transfer from retained earnings 4,177 -
Lease liabilities 257 -
Trade payables 778 -
Other financial liabilities 66 -
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 14 -
Other current liabilities 43 =

Total liabilities of disposal group held for distribution 5,335 =
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Note 29: Lease receivables
Lease receivables representing the present value of future lease rentals receivables on the finance lease transactions entered into by the Company and its

The lease agreement in respect of these assets is executed at the year-end based on the lease rentals and Implicit rate of return (IRR) with reference to average
cost of annual incremental borrowings plus margin decided at that time. Any variation in the lease rental rate or the implicit rate of return for the year is

accordingly adjusted at the year end.

Reconciliation of the lease receivable amount on the gross value of 1

: As at As at As at
Eepsulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Gross value of assets leased upto the end of previous financial year 281 -

Ada: Gross value of assets leased during the period - 298
Less: Unearned finance income (14) (32)
Less: Capital recovery for the period (99) (17)
Net investment in Lease Receivables 168 249
The details of contractual maturity of 1 as per Ind AS—116 is set out below:

: As at As at As at
Eaciculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Gross investment in lease 182 281
Unearned finance income 14 32
Present value of minimum lease payment (MLP) 168 249
The details of gross investment in lease is set out below.

B As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Not later than one year 99 99
Later than one year and not later than two years 83 99
Later than two year and not later than three years - 83
Later than three years - -

Total gross investment in lease 182 281
The details of present value of minimum lease payments (MLP) is set out below.

A As at As at As at
Earticulacs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Not later than one year 99 99
Later than one year and not later than two years 69 99
Later than two year and not later than three years - 51
Later than three years - -

Total present value of minimum lease payments 168 249
The details of unearned fi i & unguaranteed residual income is set out below.

. As at As at As at
Bl Gl March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Unearned finance income 14 32

Unguaranteed residual income
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Note 30: Fair value measurements

] instr by ¥
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
Amortised Amortised Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI cost FVTPL FVTOCI cost FVTPL FVTOCI cost
Financial assets
Investments
- Equity instruments 54 - - 54 = 49 - =
- Debentures - - - - - - - - 114
- Mutual funds 238 - - 600 - - 493 - -
‘Trade receivables - - 4,022 - - 7,037 - - 2,688
Loans - E 2 = - 190 - . 106
Cash and cash equivalents - - 546 - - 191 - - 55
Other bank balances - - 17 - - - - - -
Security deposits - - 30 - - 64 - - 25
Fixed deposits (including interest) - - 15 = - 83 - - I
Total financial asscts 292 & 4,732 654 - 7,565 | 542 - 3,184 |
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (including interest accrued) - - 72 - - 1,960 - - 3,055
Trade payables - - 2,926 - - 2,780 - - 1,742
Lense liabilities - - 646 - - 398 - - 84
Employee benefits payable - - 133 - - 154 = - 130
Other payables - - 21 - - 29 - - 13
Total financial Habilities - - 3,798 - - 5,321 - - 5,024 |
(i) Falr value hierarchy
The following table ises the fil ial instruments at fair value by valuation methods. The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markels is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using which
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for investment in certain private equity funds and unlisted equity instruments.

: Mt

the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-

Financial asscts measured at fair value - recurring falr value measurements

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 20 As at April 3, 20
Level1 Levelg Total Level1 Levely Total Level 1 Levely Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL:
Unlisted equity investments - 54 54 - 54 54 - 49 49
Mutual funds 238 - 238 600 - 600 493 - 493 |
|Taul finnncinl assets 238 54 292 &oo 54 | 654 493 49 542 |
Assets which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
Particul As at March 31, 202! As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1, 20
Level 1 Level 3 Total Level1 Level 3 Total Level1 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Financial Investments:
Debentures - - - - - - 114 114
Total financial assets - - - - - - - 114 114
The C y and its policy is to into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. There are no transfers between levels 1 and 3 during the current and
previous year.
(i) Valuati hnique used to d ine fair value

Financial assets in level 1 category includes investment in mutual funds, where the fair values for mutual funds have been determined based on closing net asset value.
Financial assets in level 3 category includes investment in unlisted equity instcuments and invesment in LLP. [nvestment in unlisted equity instruments and investment in LLP are usually not traded in the market and
considering the best information i idered as fair value of the investments.

ot

cost of i is
The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are considered to be approximate to their fair values due to their short-tecm nature.

(iii) Valuation processes
The finance department of the C ny and its Judes Chicf 1 ial Officer (CFQ) who perfi the val of fi ial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 values.
‘The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) reports direetly to the Board of Directors.
(iv) Fair value of financial assels measured at amortised cost
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at April 1, 2023
Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
amount amount amount
Debentures - - - - 114
Total financial assets - - - - - 114
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Note 31: Financial risk management

This note explains the Company and its associates's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the Company and its associates’s future
financial performance. Current year profit and loss information has been included where relevant to add farther context.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade ~ |Ageing analysis Diversification of bank deposits, credit
receivables, financial assets Credit ratings limits and letters of credit
measured at amortised cost and fair Investment guidelines for debt
value through profit or loss investments

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines

and borrowing facilities

Market risk — foreign exchange Recognised financial assets and Cash flow forecasting Insignificant foreign currency

liabilities not denominated in Sensitivity analysis exposure

Indian rupee (INR)

Borrowings at variable rates

Replacing high cost borrowings
with low cost borrowings from
time to time

Portfolio diversification

Periodical monitoring with
respect to market conditions

Market risk — interest rate

Observing market prices,
operations and cash flows
and market reports

Market risk — security prices Investments in equity securities

The Company and its associates’s risk management is predominantly controlled by a central treasury department under policies approved by the board of
directors. The Company and its associates treasury identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the Company and its associates’s
operating units. The board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Board of Directors which provides principles for overall risk management.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried at amortised cost and at fair value through profit or loss
and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers including outstanding receivables.

(i) Risk management
Credit risk is managed on a Company and its associates basis. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of

‘A’ are accepted as counterparties.

The Company and its associates assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limits by customers is
regularly monitored by line management.

Sales to customers are required to be settled in cash or using major credit cards, mitigating credit risk. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk,
whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.

The Company and its associates’s investments in debt instruments are considered to be low risk investments. The credit ratings of the issuers are monitored

for credit deterioration.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company and its associates has the following types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit loss model:

» trade receivables for sales of inventory and from the provision of services

‘While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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Trade receivables

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before the reporting date and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company and its associates has identified the GDP and the unemployment rate of the countries in
which it sells its goods and services to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based on expected changes in these factors.
Trade receivables are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Company and its associates, and a failure to make contractual payments for a
period of greater than 180 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Debt instruments (excluding loans to related parties)

All of the entity’s debt instruments (debenture assets and security deposits) at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months’ expected losses. Management consider low credit risk’ for listed instruments to be an
investment grade credit rating with at least one major rating agency. Other instruments are considered to have low credit risk when they have a low risk of
default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

Loans to related parties

The Company and its associates considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of loan and whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Company and its associates
compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. In particular, the following indicators are incorporated:

« internal credit rating

« external credit rating (as far as available)

= actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s
ability to meet its obligations

« actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the borrower

« significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower

= significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements

» significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the counterparty, including changes in the payment status of the counterparty in the
Company and its associates and changes in the operating results of the counterparty.

Macroeconomic information (such as market interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the internal rating model. Regardless of the analysis
above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a counterparty is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A default on a
financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a counterparty failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
group. The Company and its associates categorises a loan for write-off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments more than 180 days past due. Where
loans have been written off, the Company and its associates continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.
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(a) Trade receivables

Loss allowance was determined as follows trade receivables under the simplified approach:

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 6 months- 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years

Gross carrying — trade receivables - 2,461 1,338 150 88 4 1 4,042

Exp d credit loss rate 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 2.L5_96 7.00% 20.03% 100.00%

Expected credit losses — trade receivables - 6 3 3 6 1 1 20

'Carr}:h.lfen’::)ount of trade receivables (net of z 2,455 1,335 147 81 3 o 4,022

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 6 months- 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years

Gross carrying amount — trade receivables - 4,289 2,326 433 14 1 - 7,064

Expected credit loss rate 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 2.15% 7.00% 20.03% 100.00%

| Expected credit losses — trade receivables - 10 6 Q T o - 26

Farry:mg amount of trade receivables (net of . 4,278 2,321 424 13 n . 7,037

rrment)

As at April 1, 2023

Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 6 6 months- 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years

Gross carrying amount — trade receivables = 300 2,224 166 8 ] - 2,608

ected credit loss mate 0.24% 0.24% 0.24% 2.15% 7.00% 20.03% 100.00%
ected credit fosses — trade receivables - 1 5 4 1 0 - 10
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of . .
irapairment) 299 2,218 163 7 o 2,688

Reconciliation of loss allowance p

of trade receivables

Loss allowance on March 31, 2024

Particulars Trade
receivables
Loss all on April 1, 2024 26
Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance recognised in 7
profit or loss during the year
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible -
lated to assets held for distribution (Refer note 28) (771
Loss allowance on March 31, 2025 20
Loss allownnce on April 1, 2023 10
Increase/(decrease) in loss allowance recognised in 16
rofit or loss during the year
Receivables written off during the year as llectible =
Unused amount reversed -
26

During the period the Company and its associates made no write-offs of trade receivables, it does not expect to receive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written off.

(c) Loans to related parties
The C: and its

uses three categ

aligned to external eredit rating companies, such as CRISIL, ICRA, CARE and India Ratings.

for loans which reflect the credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for each of those categories. These internal credit risk ratings are

to original expectations; a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments are 30 days past due.

Category Company and its i ’s definition of category Basis for r ition of exp d credit loss pr

Performing Loans whose credit risk is in line with original expectations 12 month expected losses. Where the expected lifetime of an asset is
less than 12 months, expected losses are measured at their expected
lifetime (stage 1)

Underperforming Loans for which a significant increase in credit risk has occurred ed |Lifetime expected losses (stage 2)

Non-performing (credit impaired)

Interest and/or principal repayments are 60 days past due or it becomes
probable a borrower will enter bankruptey

Lifetime expected losses (stage 3)

Write-off

reasonable expectation of recovery

Interest and/or principal repayments are 120 days past due and there is no

Asset is written off
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Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company and its associates’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flows.

(i) Financing arrangements
The Company and its associates had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

As at As at As at

Enrticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April1, 2023
Floating rate

Expiring within one year (cash credit from Kotak Mahindra Bank)

- Fund based 2,562 1,395 2,674

- Non fund based 200 200 200
Expiring within one year (cash credit from Standard Chartered Bank)

- Fund based - 684 -
- Non fund based - - -
Expiring beyond one year (bank loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank) - - -
Total 2,762 2,279 2,874

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company and its associates’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

« all non-derivative financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances because the

impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars Less than 1 year | Between 1 and 2 | Between 2 and 5| Above 5 Years Total
years years

March 31, 2025

Non-derivatives

Borrowings including interest 72 - - - 72

Trade payables 2,847 39 40 - 2,926

Lease liabilities 89 72 260 225 646

Other financial liabilities 154 - - - 154

Total non-derivative liabilities 3,162 111 300 225 3,798

Particulars Less than 1 year | Between 1 and 2 | Between 2 and 5| Above 5 Years Total
years years

March 31, 2024

Non-derivatives

Borrowings including interest 1,960 - - - 1,960

Trade payables 2,755 24 1 - 2,780

Lease liabilities 179 170 50 - 398

Other financial liabilities 183 - - - 183

Total non-derivative liabilities 5,077 194 51 - 5,321

Particulars Less than 1 year | Between 1 and 2 | Between 2 and 5| Above 5 Years Total
years years

April 1, 2023

Non-derivatives

Borrowings including interest 3,055 - - - 3,055

Trade payables 1,739 1 1 - 1,741

Lease liabilities 39 26 19 - 84

Other financial liabilities 143 - - - 143

Total non-derivative liabilities 4,976 27 20 - 5,023
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C.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

The Company and its associates operates in India and is not materially exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. The
Company and its associates generally deals in USD for sale of goods and received of services from outside India. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company and its associates’s functional currency
(INR). The risk is monitored and measured in a volatile currency environment through dependable forecasts by the external resources and is addressed by

exiting from the exposure in material cases.

(a) Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Company and its associates's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, is as follows

Particulars Asat As at Asat
: ‘ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023
USD USD USD

Financial assets
Trade receivables 11 1 -
Financial liabilities
Trade payables - = -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 11 1 -

The aggregate net foreign exchange gain (including exchange difference presented as part of finance costs) recognised in Statement of Consolidated Profit and
Loss is INR 30 (March 31, 2024: INR 53). The exposure is not considered to be significant and hence sensitivity disclosure has not been made.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company and its associates's main interest rate risk arises from borrowings with variable rates, which exposes the Company and its associates to cash flow
interest rate risk. During March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2023, the Company and its associates's borrowings at variable rate were denominated

in INR.

The Company and its associates's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS
107 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures), since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest

rates.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure
The exposure of the Company and its associates's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023
Variable rate borrowings - 1,854 3,013
Fixed rate borrowings 72 106 42
Total 72 1,960 3,055

Weighted average rate of borrowings as at March 31, 2025 ranges from 8.5% p.a. t0 9.75% p.a.
g

Note: The exposure is not considered to be significant and hence sensitivity disclosure has not been made.

(iii) Price risk

The Company and its associates does not have significant equity investments that are publicly traded . The Company and its associates does not have
significant non-listed equity securities that are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The
Company and its associates manages its investment in unquoted securities by monitoring the cash flow measures.

Note 32: Capital management

(a) Risk management

The Company and its associates's objective when managing capital are to:

- Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
and

- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company and its associates may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. There were no changes made in the objective, policies or processes for managing capital during the

year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company and its associates monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 1, 2023
Net debt (172) (2,317) (3,084)
Total equity 7,075 9,284 8,197
Net debt to equity ratio (0.02) (0.25) (0.38)
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Note 33: Earnings per share

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March 31,
March 31, 2025 2024
a) Basic earnings per share
- From continuing operations
Profit from continuing operations 3,811 3,166
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 147,922 150,000
calculating basic earnings per share
Basic earning per share from continuing operations (A) 2,576.36 2,110.67
- From discontinued operation
Profit from discontinued operation (1,225) (2,076)
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in 147,922 150,000
calculating basic earnings per share
Basic earning per share from discontinued operation (B) (828.14) (1,384.00)
Total basic earnings per share (A+B) 1,748.22 726.67
b) Diluted earnings per share
- From continuing operations
Profit from continuing operations 3,811 3,166
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares 147,922 150,000
used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share
Diluted earning per share from continuing operations (C) 2,576.36 2,110.67
- From discontinued operation
Profit from discontinued operation (1,225) (2,076)
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares 147,922 150,000
used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share
Basic earning per share from discontinued operation (D) (828.19) (1,384.00)
Total diluted earnings per share (C+D) 1,748.22 726.67

Note 34: Transfer pricing

The Comapany and its associates has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documnents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under section g2 — 92F

of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the C

and its iates is in the process of

updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year and expects such records to be in existence latest by due
date as required under law. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm’s length so that aforesaid legislation will not have any material impact on the
financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation. The transfer pricing study for the year ended March 31, 2024 did not result in any material

adjustments.

Note 35: Assets pledged as security

The Carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are :

g Asat Asat
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Financial assets
Floating Charge
- Investments 4 and g9(b) 292 654
- Trade receivables 5(b) and 9(b) 6,957 7,037
- Cash and cash equivalents 5(d)(i) and 9(b) 866 41
- Bank balance other than iii) above 5(d)(ii) and 9(b) 17 -
- Other financial assets 5(e) and 9(b) 302 224
Non-financial assets
Inventories 7 4,543 _ 4119
Total current assets pledged as security 12,977 12,075
Non-Current Assets
First Charge
Property, plant and equipment 3(a), o(a) and 9(b) 2,321 1,607
Total non- current assets pledged as security 2,321 1,607
Total assets pledeged as security 15,298 13,682
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Note 36: Additional Regulatory Information Required by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013

M

(i)

(iii)

(@iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(A)

(a)
(b)

(B)
(@)
(b)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(i)

(xdi)

(xdii)

(xiv)

Details of Benami Property:
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company and its i for holding b i property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against current assets:
The Company and its associates has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by
the C and its iates with banks and financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

‘Willful Defaulter:
None of the entities in the Company and its associates have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Relationship with struck off Companies:
The Company and its associates has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Compliance with number of layers of Companies:
The Company and its associates has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

Compliance with approved scheme of arrangements:
The Cc and its iates has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

Utilisation of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium:
The Company and its associates has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company and its it (Ulimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company and its fates has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing
or otherwise) that the C and its iates shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Undisclosed Income:
Thereisnoi surrendered or disclosed as i during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of

account.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:
The Company and its associates has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible asset and investment property:

As the Company and its i has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) and Intangible Assets, the question of revaluation does not
Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions

The borrowings obtained by the Company and its i from banks and financial institutions have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken

Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company and its

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company and its i is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee),
Loans or Advances to Specified Persons:

The Company and its associates has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs or the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,)
either severally or jointly with any other person.
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Note 37: Analytical Ratios

. Explanation for change in the

Ratio Year Nu(r;:;a;tor Den(ont:ll‘l;a e Ratio Change ratio by more than 25% as

compared to the previous year

(a) Current Ratio (times) = |March 31, 2025 14,965 9,491 158 -37% jhe Jarialionlis dueiio transienof
Current assets/ Current battery a;d el;ctromcs tl;xllsmess as

s held for distribution in the current
liabilities March 31, 2024 12,877 5,131 2.51 -8% year.
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio (times) = |March 31, 2025 72 7,075 0.01 -95% The variation is due to the
Total Borrowings/ rep of borrowings done
Shareholder's equity March 31, 2024 1,960 9,284 0.21 -4% during the current year.

. . The variation is due to transfer of
Sii?:l:)itni:r:v:;f:l:esf ;:E:no March 31, 2025 S 2,263 164 32% battery and electronics business as
service/ Debt service March 31, 2024 1778 e s 58% ;1;1: for distribution in the current
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (% |March 31, 2025 2,586 8,180 31.62% 159% The variation is due to transfer of
age)= Net Profits after taxes/ galt(tle;y a(;\d electronics :}:xsmess as

. . eld for distribution in the current
Average shareholder's equity | March 31, 2024 1,090 8,741 12.47% -9% e
. The variation is due to transfer of
E;ﬁ::)eztg;};:‘;?s%‘:; ;::13 / March 31, 2025 21,889 3,859 567 103% battery and electronics business as
Average inventory March 31, 2024 14,600 5,333 275 2% ;:lx: for distribution in the current
(f) Trade receivables turnover 'The variation is due to transfer of
I March 31, ,686 % i 0% . )
ratio (times) = Net revenue it 3 gl 573 E battery and electronics business as
from operations/ Average trade held for distribution in the current
receivables March 31, 2024 21,439 4,863 4.41 30% year.

The variation is due to transfer of
f-i:i:r(?;:ssy:l;\l;i t;ur:do‘\;zl;s / archigjrcosg Sl 2,853 e 28% battery and electronics business as
Average trade payables March 31, 2024 oAl 2,261 617 35% ;1:;3 for distribution in the current
(h) Net capital turnover ratio  |March 31, 2025 31,686 5,474 5.79 109% The variation is due .to tran.sfer of
(times) = Revenue from battery and electronics business as
operations/ Working capital March a1, 20 ot 6 . 8% discontinued operation in the

31,2024 439 774 .77 current year.
(i) Net profit ratio (% age) = March 31, 2025 2,586 31,686 0.08 61% The variation is due to tra.n.sfer of
Net profit/ Revenue from bfmery.and electron}cs l?usmess as
operations March 31, 2024 - 21,439 3L 9% discontinued operation in the
y ) y - current year.
() Return on capital employed |March 31, 2025 3,505 7,793 44.98% 231% The variation is due to transfer of
(%age) = EBIT) Capital (l;?ttery ancl;lectromcs buslgless as
iscontinued operation in the
employed March 31, 2024 1,582 11,642 13.59% -2% current year.

. The variation is due to transfer of
S;L;‘_et;;nlg;ll;t:::::‘:::l% March 31, 2025 3,505 16,174 21.67% 96% battery and electronics business as
- discontinued operation in the
assets March 31, 2024 1,582 14,301 11.06% 9% current year.

Notes:

(a) Earnings available for debt service = Net Profit Before Tax+ Depreciation and Amortization+Finance Cost+Non Cash Expense
(b) Debt service = Interest and Principal Repayments Including Lease Payments

(c) Working Capital = Current Assets - Current Liabilities.

(d) Capital Employed = Total equity + Borrowings + Lease liabilities

(e) EBIT = Profit before tax + Finance cost
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Note 38: First-time adoption of Ind AS

A

A2

AL3

A.1.9

Az2a

A.2.2

A.2.3

Transition to Ind AS
These are the C y and its iates's first Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

P

The accounting policies set out in Note 31 have been applied in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, the
comparative information presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS
Consolidated Balance Sheet at April 1, 2023 (the Comp and its iates's date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Company and its associates has adjusted the amounts reported previously in Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).
An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company and its associates's fi ial position, fi ial performance and
cash flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS optional exemptions

Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible assets.

Accordingly, the Company and its associates has elected to measure all of its Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying
value,

Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCI on the basis of the facts and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS.
The Company and its associates has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity investments,

Leases

Appendix C to Ind AS 116 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 116, this assessment should
be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances
existing at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not material.

The Company and its associates has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts/arrangements

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2023 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company and its associates
made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP Investment in equity
instruments carried at FVPL or FVOCI;

Investment in debt instruments carried at FVPL, and Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the
entity's choosing, provided that the information needed ded to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past
transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company and its associates has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.

Classification and of fi ial

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets (investment in debt instruments) on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

(:-ll'l'n};r.\l\\
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Note 38: First-time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)

B. Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations

from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

R iliation of equity as at date of transition (April 1, 2023)

Particulars g::::i;::;::; L] p(e;rl pireP “, ous Adjustments As per Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,610 - 1,610
Right-of-use assets C.2 - 70 70
Intangible assets 35 - 35
Investments in associates 40 - 40
Financial assets
i.  Investments Ca 647 9 656
ii. Loans - B =
iii.  Other financial assets 206 - 206
Deferred tax assets (net) 78 17 95
Total non-current assets 2,616 96 2,712
Current assets
Inventories 6,548 - 6,548
Financial assets
i.  Investments - - -
ii. Trade receivables C3 2,698 (10) 2,688
iii.  Cash and cash equivalents 55 - 55
iv.  Bank balance other than iii) above - - -
v. Loans 106 - 106
vi. Other financial assets Cs 16 (63) 15
Other current assets 1,121 - 1,121
Current tax assets (net) 201 - 201
Current luding lassified as held for sale 10,834 (12) 10,824
Assets classified as held for sale - - -
Total current assets 10,834 (11) 10,824
Total assets 13.450 85 13,536
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 - 15
Other equity -
Reserves and surplus C.6 8,180 2 8,182
Total equity 8,195 2 8,197
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 320 - 320
ii. Lease liabilides C2 - 30 30
iii.  Other financial liabilities - - -
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 156 - 156
Total non-current liabilities 476 30 506
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 2,735 - 2,735
ii. Lease liabilities Cz2 - 54 54
iti. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 263 - 263
(b) Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 1,479 - 1,479
iv.  Other financial liabilities 143 - 143
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 46 - 46
Current tax liabilities (net}) - - -
Other current liabilities 113 - 113
Total current liabilities excluding liabilities relating to assets held
for sale 4,779 54 4,833
Liabilities relating to assets classified as held for sale - - -
Total current liabilities 4,779 54 4,833
Total liabilities 5,255 84 5339
Total equity and liabilities 13,450

* The previous GAAP figures are reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Note 38: First-time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)

R iliation of equity as at March 31, 2024
Particulars tl:;t::l:::i:tn s pa;]:‘::nous Adjustments As per Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,607 - 1,607
Right-of-use assets C2 - 139 139
Intangible assets 41 - 41
Investments in associates 40 - 40
Financial assets
i. Investments - - -
ii. Loans Cz2 - 150 150
iii. Other financial assets C.5 120 ()] 113
Deferred tax assets (net) 76 23 99
Total non-current assets 1,884 305 2,189
Current assets
Inventories 4,119 - 4,119
Financial assets
i. Investments C1 506 148 654
ii. Trade receivables C3 7,063 (26) 7,037
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 41 - 41
iv. Bank balance other than iii) above - - -
v. Loans C2 92 98 190
vi. Other financial assets 34 - 34
Other current assets 587 - 587
Current tax assets (net; 215 - 215
Current luding classified as held for sale 12,656 220 12,877
Assets classified as held for sale - - -
Total current assets 12,656 220 12,877
Total assets 14,540 323 15,066
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15 - 15
Other equity
Reserves and surplus C.6 9,141 128 9,269
Total equity 9,156 128 9,284
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 276 - 276
ii. Lease liabilities C.2 - 179 179
iii. Other financial liabilides 23 - 23
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 173 - 173
Total non-current liabilities 472 179 651
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.  Borrowings 1,684 - 1,684
ii. Lease liabilities C.2 - 219 219
iii. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 574 - 574
(b) Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 2,206 - 2,206
iv.  Other financial liabilities 160 - 160
Provisions - employee benefit obligations 94 - 94
Current tax liabilities (net) - - B
Other current liabilities 194 - 194
Total current liabilities excluding liabilities relating to assets held
for sale 4,912 219 5,131
Liabilities relating to assets classified as held for sale - - -
Total current liabilities 4,912 219 5,131
Total liabilities 5,384 398 5,782
Total equity and liabilities 14,540 526 15,066

* The previous GAAP figures are reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.
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Note 38: First-time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)

R iliation of total prehensive i for the year ended March 31, 2024
: Notes to first- As per previous A

Particulars time adoption GAAP® Adjustments As per Ind AS
Continuing operations
Revenue from operations 21,439 N 21,439
Other income C.2 24 1 25
Other gains/(losses) — net C1 32 138 170
Total income 21,496 139 21,634
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 14,680 - 14,680
Purchases of stock-in-trade - - -
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 220 - 220
Employee benefit expense 1,206 - 1,206
Depreciation and amortisation expense C.2 148 44 192
Impairment of others non-current assets = - -
Net impairment losses on financial assets C3 - 4 4
Other expenses C.2 1,728 (54) 1,674
Finance costs Cs 61 9 70
Total expenses 18,043 3 18,046
Profit before tax 3,453 136 3,588
Income tax expense
- Current tax 427 - 427
- Deferred tax 1 (6) (5)
Total tax expense 428 (6) 422
Profit from continuing operations (A) 3,025 142 3,166
Discontinued operations
Profit from discontinued operations before tax (2,063) (13) (2,076)
Tax expenses of discontinued operations - - -
Profit from discontinued operations (B) (2,063) (13) (2,076)
Profit for the year (A+B) 962 129 1,090
Other prehensive i C.zand C.7 - (3) (3)
Total comprehensive income for the year 962 126 1,087
* The previous GAAP figures are reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note.

Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2024 and April 1, 2023
Particulars IYotes to ﬁl:st- As at March 31, As at April 1,

time adoption 2024 2023

Total equity (shareholder's fund) as per previous GAAP 9,155 8,195
Adjustments:
Fair value of investments C1 148 9
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables C3 (26) (10)
Fair valuation of security deposits Cs )] (o)
Lease as per Ind AS-116 C.2 (10) (14)
Tax effect of adjustments 23 17
Total adjustments 128 2
Total equity as per Ind AS 9,282 8,197

R iliation of total comprehensive i for the year ended March 31, 2024

. _ Notes to first- As at March 31,

Particulars time adoption 2024
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 959
Adjustments:
Fair value of investments Ca 139
Provision for expected credit loss on trade receivables C.3 (16)
Fair valuation of security deposits Cs @)
Lease adjustments as per Ind AS-116 C.2and C.7 4
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations Ca 3
Tax effect of adjustments 6
Total adjustments 129
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 1,088
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (3)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 1|osi




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the C lidated Fi ial St
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the C lidated St of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
Notes to first- As per previous =
Particulars time adoption GAAP* Adjustments As per Ind AS
Net cash flow from operating activities C.3,C4,C5 1,189 280 1,469
Net cash flow from investing activities Ci1 (226) 177 (49)
Net cash flow from financing activities C2 (1,096) (338) (1,434)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (133) 120 (14)
Cash and cash equivalents as at April 1, 2023 243 (188) 55
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2024 110 (68) 41
C. Notes to first-time adoption:
C.1  Fair valuation of investments
Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments and mutual funds were classified as long-term investments or current investments based on the
intended holding period and realisability. Long-term investments were carried at cost less provisions for other than temporary decline in the value of such
investments. Current investments were carried at lower of cost and fair value investments are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value
changes of these investments (other than equity instruments designated as at FVOCI) have been recognised in retained earnings as at the date of transition and
subsequently in the profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2024. This increased the retained earnings by INR 148 as at March 31, 2024 (April 1, 2023: INR 9)
There is no investments in equity instruments which is designated as at FVOCI.
Consequent to the above, the total equity as at March 31, 2024 increased by INR 148 (April 1, 2023 - INR 9) and profit and other comprehensive income for the
year ended March 31, 2024 increased by INR 148 and INR 9, respectively.
C.2  Leases
As per Ind AS 116, the Company and its iates is required to recognise the lease liability & right to use assets for the agr ts where the Company and its
associates is acting as lessee and lease receivable & lease liability for the agreements where the Company and its associates is acting as lessor. As a result, the lease
liability increased by INR 398 as at March 31, 2024 (April 1, 2023: INR 84). Consequently, the righ to use assets as at March 31, 2024 increased by INR 139 (April
1, 2023-INR 70) and lease receivables as at March 31, 2024 increased by INR 248 (April 1, 2023-INR Nil). The profit for the year ended March 31, 2024 decreased
by INR 0.
C.3  Tradereceivables
As per Ind AS 109, the Company and its iates is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. As a result, the
allowance for doubtful debts increased by INR 16 as at March 31, 2024 (April 1, 2023: INR 10). Consequently, the total equity as at March 31, 2024 decreased by
INR 16 (April 1, 2023-INR 10) and profit for the year ended March 31, 2024 decreased by INR 16.
C.4 Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations
Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other compreh i d of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming
part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of tlns change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2024 decreased by INR 3. There is no impact on the total
equity as at March 31, 2024.
C.5  Security deposits
Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) are recorded at their transaction value.
Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Company and its associates has fair valued these security deposits
under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been gnised as prepaid rent. Consequent to this change, the
amount of security deposits decreased by INR 7 as at March 31, 2024 (April 1, 2023 - INR 1). The prepaid rent increased by INR 7 as at March 31, 2024 (April 1,
2023-INR 1). Total equity decreased by INR 1 as on April 1, 2023. The profit for the year and total equity as at March 31, 2024 decreased by INR 7 due to
amortisation of the prepaid rent of INR 7 which is partially off-set by the notional interest income of INR 1 recognised on security deposits.
C.6 Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at April 1, 2023 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.
C.7  Other preh ive i

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits
otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as 'other comprehensive income’
includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair value gains or (losses) on FVOCI equity instruments. The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP.
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Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 41: § y of other ing p

This note provides a list of other ing pol dopted in the preparation of these Consolidated Fi ial St ts to the extent they have not already been disclosed in the
other notes above.
(a) Rounding of amounts
Al disclosed in the Consolidated Fi ial and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.
(b) Segment reporting

(c)

@

(e)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The board of directors will assesses the financial
performance and position of the Company and its associates, and makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of each of the Company and its associates’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in

which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company and its jates’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Tr jons and bal

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the tr i Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are g 11 gnised in
profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising on foreign currency borrowings are pr din the t of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and

losses are pr d in the C lidated St of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses)-net..

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilides carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss, For exam ple, translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss, and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity investments classified as at FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Government grants - Export incentives

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company and its iates will comply with
all attached conditions. Note 16(a) provides further information on how the Company and its iates accounts for government grants.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. :

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws d or sul ively ted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its
associates and its associates op and g ble i Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax tr The Company and its i its
tax balances either based on the most likely or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
Consolidated Fi ial St 1s. H " deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor
taxable profit (tax loss) and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary diffe Deferred i tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been

d or sub ially enacted by the end of the reporting petiod and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability

is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised for temparary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in associates where the Company and its associates is
able to control the timing of the | of the temporary diffe and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recogni d in other comprehensive i or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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o

@®)

(h)

Leases

As a lessee

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:
« fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

- amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees

» the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is bly certain to ise that option,

» lease payments to be made under an extension aption if the Company and its associates is reasonably certain to exercise the option, and

» payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease lerm reflects the Company and its associates exercising that option.

(R}

certain extension options are also included in the ement of the liability.

Lease payments to be made under

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

« any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
« any initial direct costs

= restoration costs.

As a lessor
Lease income from operating leases where the Company and its i is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in

obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Entity-specific details about the Company and its associates’s leasing policy are provided in note 3(b).

Impairment of asscts

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment w} events or changes in ci indicate that the carrying amount might not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Company and its i at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or Company and its i of assets (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of p ion in the Consolidated St of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
iginal ities of three ths or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Trade receivables
See note 5(b) for information about the Company and its associates’s accounting for trade receivables and note 31(a) for a description of the Company and its associates’s impairment

Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress, traded and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw materials and stock-in-trade comprises cost of
purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter
being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of i jes also include all other costs incurred in bringing the i ies to their p location and condition,
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting ret and di 5. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Entity-specific details about inventories are provided in note 7.
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(k) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

o

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable
to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investments and other financial assets
(i) Classification

The Company and its associates classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss)
« those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Company and its associates has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in

other comprehensive income.

The Company and its associates reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the Company and its associates commits to purchase or sell the financial
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company and its associates has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company and its associates measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component) at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of

financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of prineipal and interest.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments

The Company and its associates subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company and its associates’s management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company and its associates’s right to receive payments is established.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets

The Company and its associates assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 31(a) details how the Company and its associates determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Entity-specific details about investments and other financial assets are provided in note 5(a).
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(m) Property, plant and equipment

)

(o)

(p)

The Company and its associates's accounting policy for land is explained in note 3(a). Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apprapriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its associates and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying of any p d for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other income/other expense, as appropriate.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company and its i prior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services

and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is extinguished, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the ideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the end of the reporting period, the Company and its associates has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before

the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to d d pay asa g of the breach.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or producnon of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that ily take a sub ial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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(q) Provisions

(r)

Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are recognised when the Company and its i has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the can be reliabl, i

y estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in setlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations might be small.

Provisions are ed al the p value of g 1t's best esti of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects market of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, ineluding non- ¥ benefits that are exp 1 to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit bligations in the bal sheet,

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

In some countries, the Company and its iates also has liabilities for earncd leave that are not expected to be settled whally within 12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These obligations are therefore ed as the p value of expected future pay to be made in respect of services provided by

employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benofits are discounted using the appropriate market yields at the end of the reporting
period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss,

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right, at the end of the reporting period, to defer settlement for at
least twelve months after the reparting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company and its iates operates the following post-employment schemes:
« defined benefit plans such as gratuity, pension, post-employment medieal plans

» defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Pension and gratuity obligations
The linbility or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated ann ually by actuaries using the projected unit eredit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation d inated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The esti d future pay which ared inated in a currency other
than INR, are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other

They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Ly

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company and its i pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company and its associates has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.




Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited
(Company Identification No : U40107HR2006PTC056098)

Notes to the C lidated Fi ial Stat t
(All amount in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(s) Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company and its
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year (see note 33).

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results
would be anti-dilutive.

() Business combinations
The acquisition method of ing is used to for all busi combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:
« fair values of the assets transferred
» liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business
- equity interests issued by the group
« fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement

h

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities d in a busi ination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Company and its associates recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

h

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities d in a busi ination are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Company and its associates recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

= consideration transferred

- amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity

« acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acq\nred is recorded as goodwﬂl If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised in other comprel and lated in equity as capital veserve provided there is clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the
business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised directly in equity as capital reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a fi ial liability. A classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate

(u) Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company and its associates has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equip and int
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment, investment properties and intangible assets.

st

assets ed as per

Note 42: Event after the reporting date
The Company has filed a scheme of arrangement before the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) between the Greenfuel Energy Solutions Private Limited (Demerged Company)

and Greenfuel Battery Solutions Private Limited (Resulting Company) for the transfer of business of energy storage sy busi and e-mobility division to the resulting Company.
Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2025, a meeting was held with the secured creditors for the approval of the scheme of arrangement and the same was filed with the NCLT on
April 19, 2025. There is no event after the reporting date that require any adjustment in the C lidated Fi ial St: )

The notes from note no. 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial Statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
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